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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
for the year ended 29 February 2020

LUXE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Formerly Taste Holdings Limited) 
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 2000/002239/06)
Share code: LUX
ISIN: ZAE000286035
(“Luxe” or “the company”)

Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of shareholders of Luxe will be  held 
entirely via a remote interactive electronic platform Microsoft Teams on Thursday, 22 October 
2020, at 14:00. The purpose of the annual general meeting is to present the annual financial 
statements for the year ended 29 February 2020, including the directors report, the auditors’ 
report, the report of the social, ethics and transformation committee and the audit and risk 
committee report, to shareholders and to consider and, if deemed appropriate, to pass the 
ordinary and special resolutions listed below, with or without modification.

This notice is accompanied by the summarised consolidated financial statements of 
the company for its 2020 financial year, while the audited annual consolidated financial 
statements, including the unmodified audit opinion, and the integrated annual report are 
available for download on our website at www.luxeholdings.co.za. Should you wish to receive 
an electronic copy of either document, please email the company secretary at Craig.Laidlaw@
computershare.co.za. Kindly note that in terms of Section 63(1) of the Companies Act, No. 71 
of 2008, as amended (“the Companies Act”), meeting participants (including proxies) will be 
required to provide reasonably satisfactory identification before being entitled to participate 
in and/or vote at the annual general meeting. Forms of identification that will be accepted 
include original and valid identity documents, driver’s licenses and passports. Shareholders 
or their duly authorised proxies who wish to participate in the annual general meeting, must 
register to do so by lodging a completed Electronic Participation Application Form by Tuesday, 
20 October 2020, at 14:00.

The board of directors of the company (“the board”) has determined that the record date in terms of 
Section 62(3)(a) as read with Section 59(1) of the Companies Act, to determine which shareholders 
of the company are entitled to receive notice of the annual general meeting is Friday, 18 September 
2020 and the record date for purposes of determining which shareholders of the company are 
entitled to participate in and/or vote at the annual general meeting is Friday, 16 October 2020. 
Accordingly, the last day to trade in the company’s shares is Tuesday, 13 October 2020. 

Shareholders are referred to the explanatory notes as attached to the notice of the annual general 
meeting for additional information, including abbreviated profiles of the directors standing for 
re-election.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1: RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF 
DIRECTOR
Ms Nonzukiso (“Zukie”) Siyotula retires by rotation and offers herself for re-election as a director of 
the company.

Accordingly, shareholders are requested to consider and, if deemed fit, approve the ordinary 
resolution set out below.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION 1
It is RESOLVED that Ms Nonzukiso (“Zukie”) Siyotula, who retires by rotation in terms of the 
memorandum of incorporation of the company (“MOI”) and, being eligible, offers herself for re-
election as an independent non-executive director of the company, be and is hereby re-elected  
as a director.

Zukie was previously the Chief Executive Officer for Thebe Capital. She has previously held senior 
roles at Barclays and Old Mutual. She serves on a number of boards, including Growthpoint 
Properties, African Phoenix Investments and Stangen. 

She previously served on the boards of Shell SA, Safripol, Altech Netstar, Vodacom, Combined 
Motor Holdings, Compass Group, JLT Insurance, Thebe Unico and Thebe Energy. Zukie has diverse 
professional experience in areas such as finance, mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance, 
strategy, restructuring, investment management, business development, sales and distribution. 

Zukie is a chartered accountant (SA) and a chartered management accountant (UK), who was 
ranked top student in South Africa on completion. She holds a Bachelor of Accountancy degree 
from Witwatersrand University and an MBA from the Gordon Institute of Business Science. She 
has completed executive programmes from Harvard, Insead and Oxford and won many industry 
awards.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS NUMBERS 2.1 TO 2.3: APPOINTMENT OF THE 
MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE OF THE COMPANY 
It is proposed that the following independent non-executive directors be appointed as members 
of the audit and risk committee of the company.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 2.1
It is RESOLVED that Mr Grant Pattison be and is hereby re-appointed as a member and 
chairperson of the audit and risk committee of the company until the conclusion of the next 
annual general meeting of the company in 2021.

Grant is currently Chief Executive Officer of Edcon, South Africa’s largest non-food retailer. He also 
sits on the boards of various private companies. Prior to establishing Gpam Proprietary Limited in 
October 2014, he was with South African retailer Massmart Holdings Limited for 17 years, the last 
seven of which as Chief Executive Officer. 

Grant graduated from the University of Cape Town in 1992 with a first-class BSc Honours degree in 
Heavy Current Electrical Engineering.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 2.2
It is RESOLVED that Ms Zukie Siyotula be and is hereby re-appointed as a member of the audit 
and risk committee of the company, subject to her re-election as a director pursuant to Ordinary 
Resolution 1, until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the company in 2021.

See Ordinary Resolution 1 for summary curriculum vitae of Ms Siyotula.

The attention of shareholders is specifically drawn to the dual roles of Ms Zukie Siyothula as 
independent non-executive director and Chairperson of the Company and as member of the  
Audit and Risk Committee.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 2.3
It is RESOLVED that Mr Leo Chou be and is hereby re-appointed as a member of the audit and 
risk committee of the company until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the 
company in 2021.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020
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Leo is the executive chairperson of Sygma Investment & Consulting Proprietary Limited, a private 
investment company based in Cape Town with holdings in international brand distribution, retail, 
niche logistics and investments in marketable securities and treasury management. 

Leo previously served as Chairperson and CEO of Snowball Wealth, a privately held investment 
company, which was sold to Conduit Capital Limited. 

Leo obtained a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of South Africa. He currently 
serves as a non-executive director of Conduit Capital Limited.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 3: RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS
It is RESOLVED, on the recommendation of the audit and risk committee of the company, that 
BDO South Africa Incorporated be and is hereby re-appointed as independent auditors of the 
company for the ensuing financial year or until the next annual general meeting of the company, 
whichever is the later, with the designated auditor being Ms Serena Ho, as registered auditor and 
partner in the firm. The individual designated auditor, Ms Serena Ho meets the requirements of 
Section 90(2) of the Companies Act.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 4: CONTROL OF AUTHORISED BUT UNISSUED 
ORDINARY SHARES
It is RESOLVED that the authorised but unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the company be 
and are hereby placed under the control and authority of the directors of the company and that 
the directors be and are hereby authorised to allot and issue at their discretion the unissued but 
authorised ordinary shares in the share capital of the company and/or grant options to subscribe 
for the unissued shares, to such person/s for such purposes and on such terms and conditions 
as they may in their discretion deem fit, subject to the provisions of the Listings Requirements of 
the JSE Limited (“JSE Listings Requirements”), Sections 38 and 41 of the Companies Act and the 
company’s memorandum of incorporation, and shareholders hereby waive any pre-emptive rights 
thereto.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 5: AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES FOR CASH
It is RESOLVED that, in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the directors of the company are 
hereby authorised in terms of a general authority to:
•  allot and issue, or to issue any options in respect of, all or any of the authorised but unissued 

ordinary shares in the capital of the company; and/or
•  sell or otherwise dispose of or transfer, or issue any options in respect of ordinary shares in the 

capital of the company purchased by subsidiaries of the company, for cash, to such person/s on 
such terms and conditions and at such times as the directors may from time to time in their 
discretion deem fit, subject to the Companies Act, company’s (or one of its wholly owned 
subsidiaries) the memorandum of incorporation and the JSE Listings Requirements, from time 
to time.

The JSE Listings Requirements currently provide, inter alia, that:
• this authority shall only be valid until the next annual general meeting of the company but  

shall not extend beyond 15 months from the date of this annual general meeting;
• the allotment and issue of the shares must be made to persons qualifying as public 

shareholders as defined in the JSE Listings Requirements and not to related parties;
• the shares, which are the subject of the issue for cash, must be of a class already in issue, or 

where this is not the case, must be limited to such shares or rights that are convertible into  
a class already in issue;

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020



Condensed consolidated results | 20204

• a paid press announcement giving full details, including the impact of the issue on net asset 
value, net tangible asset value, earnings and headline earnings per share and, if applicable, 
diluted earnings and diluted headline earnings per share, be published after any issue 
representing, on a cumulative basis within one financial year, 5% of the number of shares in 
issue before the issue concerned;

• the issues in aggregate in any one financial year must be less than 30% of the number of shares 
of the company’s issued ordinary share capital (net of treasury shares) as at the date of this 
notice, being 6 664 503 ordinary shares;

• in determining the price at which an issue of shares for cash will be made in terms of this 
authority, the maximum discount permitted shall be 10% of the weighted average traded price 
of the ordinary shares on the JSE, measured over the 30 business days prior to the date that the 
price of the issue is agreed between the company and the party subscribing for the securities. 
The JSE will be consulted for a ruling if the securities have not traded in such 30-business-day 
period; and

• whenever the company wishes to use repurchased shares, held as treasury shares by a 
subsidiary of the company, such use must comply with the JSE Listings Requirements as if such 
use was a fresh issue of ordinary shares.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS NUMBERS 6.1 AND 6.2: ADVISORY ENDORSEMENT 
OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY AND IMPLEMENTATION REPORT ON THE 
REMUNERATION POLICY
The King IV Report on Corporate Governance™ for South Africa, 2016 (“King IV™”) recommends, 
and the JSE Listings Requirements require,  that the company’s remuneration policy and 
implementation report on the remuneration policy be tabled to shareholders for non-binding 
advisory votes at each annual general meeting of the company. Failure to pass any one or both 
of these resolutions will not have legal consequences relating to existing arrangements. However, 
the board will consider the outcome when assessing the company’s remuneration policy and its 
implementation.

In the event that 25% (twenty-five percent) or more of the votes cast against ordinary resolutions 
numbers 6.1 or 6.2 are recorded against such resolution/s, the directors will actively engage with 
dissenting shareholders to address any legitimate and reasonable objections and concerns 
regarding the company’s remuneration policy and/or the implementation report on the 
remuneration policy.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 6.1
To approve, as a non-binding advisory vote in terms of King IV™, the company’s remuneration 
policy (excluding the remuneration of the non-executive directors for their services as directors  
and members of board committees) as set out in the remuneration report which is annexed to  
this notice.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 6.2
To approve, as a non-binding advisory vote in terms of King IV™, the company’s implementation 
report on the remuneration policy (excluding the remuneration of the non-executive directors 
for their services as directors and members of board committees) as set out in the remuneration 
report which is annexed to this notice.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 7: SIGNING AUTHORITY
It is RESOLVED that any one director and/or the company secretary of the company be and is 
hereby authorised to do all such things and sign all such documents as are deemed necessary to 
implement the resolutions set out in this notice.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020



Condensed consolidated results | 2020 5

SPECIAL RESOLUTION 1: APPROVAL OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ 
REMUNERATION
It is RESOLVED, as a special resolution:
•  that the company be and is hereby authorised to pay remuneration to its non-executive 

directors for their services as non-executive directors, as contemplated in Sections 66(8) and 
66(9) of the Companies Act; and

•  that the remuneration structure and amounts, as set out below, be and are hereby approved 
until rescinded or amended by shareholders by way of a special resolution.

Annual remuneration: Per non-executive director

Approved
fee in
 2020

R

Proposed
fee in

2021
R

Chair of board 365 700 275 000

Board Member 181 239 125 000

Chair of Audit and risk Committee 95 506 110 000

Chair of Remuneration Committee 55 120 55 000

Chair of Nominations Committee 55 120 55 000

Chair of Social and Ethics Committee 55 120 55 000

Committee Member – Audit and Risk Committee 75 260 75 000

Committee Member – Other Committees 39 305 30 000

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 2: GENERAL AUTHORITY TO REPURCHASE 
SHARES
It is RESOLVED, as a special resolution, that the company in terms of its memorandum of 
incorporation (or one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries) are hereby authorised, by way of general 
approval, to acquire the company’s securities, upon such terms and conditions and in such 
amounts as the directors may from time to time decide, subject to the JSE Listings Requirements, 
Section 48 and 46 of the Companies Act and the company’s memorandum of incorporation, 
subject to the following:
•  this general authority be valid until the company’s next annual general meeting, provided that 

it shall not extend beyond 15 (fifteen) months from the date of passing of this special resolution 
(whichever period is shorter);

•  the repurchase being affected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system, 
without any prior understanding or arrangement between the company and the counterparty;

•  repurchases may not be made at a price greater than 10% (ten percent) above the weighted 
average of the market value of the ordinary shares for the 5 (five) business days immediately 
preceding the date on which the transaction was effected. The JSE will be consulted for a ruling 
if the company’s securities have not traded in such 5-business-day period;

• an announcement being published as soon as the company has repurchased ordinary shares 
constituting, on a cumulative basis, 3% (three percent) of the initial number of ordinary shares, 
and for each 3% (three percent) in aggregate of the initial number of ordinary shares 
repurchased thereafter, containing full details of such repurchases;

• the number of shares which may be acquired according to this authority in any one financial 
year may not in the aggregate exceed 20% (twenty percent) of the company’s issued share 
capital as at the date of passing of this special resolution or 10% of the company’s issued share 
capital in the case of an acquisition of shares in the company by a subsidiary of the company;

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020
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• the company and/or its subsidiaries not repurchasing securities during a prohibited period as 
defined in paragraph 3.67 of the JSE Listings Requirements, unless it has in place a repurchase 
programme where the dates and quantities of securities to be acquired during the relevant 
period are fixed, and full details of the programme have been submitted to the JSE in writing 
before the commencement of the prohibited period and executed by an independent third 
party, as contemplated in terms of paragraph 5.7.2(h) of the JSE Listings Requirements;

• at any point in time the company only appoints one agent to effect any repurchases on its 
behalf; and

• the board passing a resolution that they authorised the repurchase , that the company and its 
subsidiaries satisfied the solvency and liquidity test set out in Section 4 of the Companies Act 
and that since the test was applied there have been no material changes to the financial 
position of the company and its subsidiaries.

The directors of the company and its subsidiaries will only utilise the general authority to purchase 
the company’s securities to the extent that they, having considered the effects of the maximum 
repurchase permitted, believe that for 12 (twelve) months after the date of the notice of the annual 
general meeting and at the actual date of the repurchase:

• the company and the group will be able, in the ordinary course of business, to pay its debts;
• the working capital of the company and the group will be adequate for ordinary business 

purposes;
• the assets of the company and the group, as fairly valued in accordance with IFRS, will exceed 

the liabilities of the company and the group, as fairly valued;
• the company’s and the group’s ordinary share capital and reserves will be adequate for ordinary 

business purposes; and
• the directors have passed a resolution authorising the repurchase, resolving that the company 

and its subsidiaries have satisfied the solvency and liquidity test as defined in the Companies 
Act and resolving that since the solvency and liquidity test had been applied, there have been 
no material changes to the financial position of the group.

Additional information
The following additional information is provided in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements 
for purposes of the general authority to repurchase the company’s securities set out in special 
resolution number 2 above:
• major shareholders set out in Annexure A of this notice; and
• share capital of the company set out in Annexure A of this notice.

Directors’ responsibility statement 
The directors in office, whose names appear under the corporation information section on 
the inside back cover collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy 
of the information pertaining to special resolution number 2 and certify that, to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any 
statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been 
made and that the special resolution contains all information required by law and the JSE Listings 
Requirements.

Material changes 
Other than the facts and developments reported on in the summarised consolidated financial 
statements, no material changes in the financial or trading position of the company and its 
subsidiaries have occurred between the company’s financial year-end and the date of this notice.

Directors’ intention regarding the general authority to repurchase the company’s shares
The directors have no specific intention, at present, for the company to repurchase any of its 
securities but consider that such a general authority should be put in place should an opportunity 
present itself to do so during the year and which is in the best interests of the company and its 
shareholders.    

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020
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SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 3: FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO RELATED AND 
INTERRELATED COMPANIES
It is RESOLVED, by way of a special resolution in terms of Sections 44 and 45 of the Companies Act, 
that the directors of the company be and are hereby authorised to provide any direct or indirect 
financial assistance (which include lending money, guaranteeing a loan or other obligation, and 
securing any debt or obligation) to all related and interrelated companies within the Luxe group 
of companies. Also,  to any person for, or in connection with, the subscription of any option, or 
any securities, issued or to be issued by the company or a related or interrelated company or for 
the purchase of any securities of the company or a related or interrelated company. Likewise at 
such times and on such terms and conditions as the directors in their sole discretion deem fit and 
subject to all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements being met, such authority is to remain 
in place for 2 years (two years) or until rescinded by way of a special resolution passed at a duly 
constituted annual general meeting of the company, provided that:
a.  the board, from time to time, determines (i) the specific recipient or general category of 

potential recipients of such financial assistance; (ii) the form, nature and extent of such financial 
assistance; (iii) the terms and conditions under which such financial assistance is provided;

b.  the board may not authorise the company to provide any financial assistance pursuant to this 
special resolution number 3 unless the board meets all those requirements of Sections 44 and 
45 of the Companies Act which it is required to meet to authorise the company to provide such 
financial assistance; and

c.  in as much as the company’s provision of financial assistance to its subsidiaries will at any and 
all times be in excess of one-tenth of 1% (one tenth of one percent) of the company’s net worth, 
the company hereby provides notice to its shareholders of that fact.

OTHER BUSINESS
To transact such other business as may be transacted at an annual general meeting or raised by 
shareholders with or without advance notice to the company.

ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION
The Company’s memorandum of incorporation authorises the conduct of shareholders’ meetings 
entirely by electronic communication as does section 63(2)(a) of the Companies Act. In light of the 
measures put in place by the South African Government in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
the Board has decided that the Annual General Meeting will only be accessible through a remote 
interactive electronic platform as detailed below.

Shareholders or their duly appointed proxies who wish to participate in the Annual General 
Meeting are required to complete the Electronic Participation Application Form available 
immediately after the proxy form on page 33 and email same to the Company’s Transfer 
Secretaries at proxy@computershare.co.za and to craig.laidlaw@computershare.co.za as soon as 
possible, but in any event by no later than 14:00 on Tuesday, 20 October 2020.

Shareholders or their duly appointed proxies are required to provide satisfactory identification 
before being entitled to participate in the Annual General Meeting. 

Upon receiving a completed Electronic Participation Application Form, the Company’s Transfer 
Secretaries will follow a verification process to verify each applicant’s entitlement to participate in 
and/or vote at the Annual General Meeting. The Company’s Transfer Secretaries will provide the 
Company with the nominated email address of each verified shareholder or their duly appointed 
proxy to enable the Company to forward them a Microsoft Teams meeting invitation required to 
access the Annual General Meeting. 

Fully verified shareholders or their duly appointed proxies who have applied to participate 
electronically in the Annual General Meeting are requested by no later than 13:55, 22 October 2020 
by clicking on the “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” link to be provided by Luxe’s company secretary 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020
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or by the secretarial office, whose admission to the meeting will be controlled by the company 
secretary/secretarial office.

Participants will be liable for their own network charges in relation to electronic participation in 
and/or voting at the Annual General Meeting. Any such charges will not be for the account of the 
Company’s Transfer Secretaries or Luxe who will also not be held accountable in the case of loss 
of network connectivity or other network failure due to insufficient airtime, internet connectivity, 
internet bandwidth and/or power outages which prevents any such shareholder or their proxy 
from participating in and /or voting at the Annual General Meeting.

PROXIES
For an ordinary resolution, save for ordinary resolution 5, to be approved by the shareholders, it 
must be supported by more than 50% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution. For a special 
resolution and ordinary resolution 5 to be approved by the shareholders, it must be supported by 
at least 75% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution.

Voting will be via a poll; every shareholder of the Company shall have one vote for every share held 
in the Company by such shareholder.

A shareholder entitled to participate and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint 
a proxy or proxies to electronically participate, speak and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be 
a shareholder of the Company. 

The electronic platform (Microsoft Teams) to be utilised to host the Annual General Meeting does 
not provide for electronic voting during the meeting. 

Accordingly, shareholders are strongly encouraged to submit votes by proxy in advance of the 
Annual General Meeting, by completing the Form of Proxy (found at page 35) and lodging this 
form with the Company’s Transfer Secretaries by no later than 14;00, 20 October 2020 by:
• delivery to Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited, Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann 

Avenue, Rosebank; or
• email to proxy@computershare.co.za. 

Any forms of proxy not submitted by this time can still be lodged by email to proxy@
computershare.co.za and to craig.laidlaw@computershare.co.za prior to the commencement of 
the meeting.

Shareholders are reminded that they are still able to vote normally through proxy submission, 
despite deciding to participate either electronically or not at all in the Annual General Meeting. 

Shareholders who indicate in the Electronic Participation Application Form that they wish to vote 
during the electronic meeting, will be contacted by the Company’s Transfer Secretaries to make 
the necessary arrangements.

DEMATERIALISED SHAREHOLDERS WITHOUT ‘OWN NAME’ REGISTRATION
Dematerialised shareholders, other than those with ‘own name’ registration, who wish to 
participate in the Annual General Meeting, should instruct their Central Securities Depository 
Participant (“CSDP”) or Broker to issue them with the necessary letter of representation to 
participate in the Annual General Meeting, in the manner stipulated in the relevant custody 
agreement. The letter of representation will need to be submitted together with the completed 
Electronic Participation Application Form to the Company’s Transfer Secretaries and to Luxe 
in the manner and within the timeframe described above under the section titled “Electronic 
Participation Arrangements”.  

If these shareholders do not wish to participate in the Annual General Meeting in person, they 
must provide the CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the relevant custody 
agreement entered into between them and the CSDP or broker.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020
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CERTIFICATED SHAREHOLDERS AND DEMATERIALISED SHAREHOLDERS 
WITH ‘OWN NAME’ REGISTRATION 
Those Certificated Shareholders and Dematerialised Shareholders with ‘own name’ registration, 
who wish to participate in the Annual General Meeting (either in person or represented by proxy), 
must submit a completed Electronic Participation Application Form to the Company’s Transfer 
Secretaries and to Luxe in the manner and within the timeframe described above under the 
section titled “Electronic Participation Arrangements”.

QUORUM
The Quorum for a Shareholders’ meeting to begin or for a matter to be considered is at least three 

Shareholders being present at the meeting (by electronic participation or by proxy), provided 
that:

•  a Shareholders’ meeting may not begin until sufficient persons are present at the meeting (by 
electronic participation or by proxy) to exercise. in aggregate, at least 25% of the voting rights 
that are entitled to be entertained in respect of at least one matter to be decided at the 
meeting; and

•  a matter to be decided at a Shareholders’ meeting may not begin to be considered unless 
sufficient persons are present at the meeting (by electronic participation or by proxy) to 
exercise, in aggregate, at least 25% of all the voting rights that are entitled to be exercised in 
respect of that matter at the time the matter is called on the agenda.

VOTING THRESHOLDS
Ordinary resolutions numbers 1 to 4 and 7 are subject to a simple majority of votes.

In terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the approval of a 75% majority of votes of all 
shareholders, present or represented by proxy, is required to approve ordinary resolution 5.

In terms of King IV™ and the JSE Listings Requirements, should shareholders exercising 25% or 
more of the voting rights exercised, vote against ordinary resolution numbers 6.1 and/or 6.2, then 
the company is required to engage with those dissenting shareholders.

The special resolutions must be supported by at least 75% of the voting rights exercised.

VOTING
In terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, any shares held by the company’s share incentive 
scheme will not have its votes at the annual general meeting taken into account in determining 
the results of voting on ordinary resolution number 5 and special resolution number 2.

By order of the board

CIS Company Secretaries (Pty) Ltd)
(per C Laidlaw)
Company secretary

23 September 2020

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020
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VOTING
A 75% majority of the votes cast by shareholders present or represented by proxy at the annual 
general meeting must be cast in favour of special resolutions for such resolutions to be approved. 
Ordinary resolutions are approved by more than 50% of the votes cast by shareholders present or 
represented by proxy on such resolutions with exception of ordinary resolution 5 which requires a 
75% approval.

PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At the annual general meeting, the directors must present the annual financial statements for 
the year ended 29 February 2020 to shareholders, together with the reports of the directors, the 
audit and risk committee, social, ethics and transformation committee and the auditors. These are 
contained within the Integrated Report. 

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1: RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF 
DIRECTOR
In accordance with the company’s memorandum of incorporation, the JSE Listings Requirements, 
and, to the extent applicable, the Companies Act, one-third of the non-executive directors are 
required to retire at each annual general meeting and may offer themselves for re-election. In 
addition, any person appointed to the board following the previous annual general meeting is 
similarly required to retire and is eligible for re-election at the next annual general meeting.

The reason for ordinary resolution number 1 is to elect directors retiring per the company’s 
memorandum of incorporation, the JSE Listings Requirements and, to the extent applicable, the 
Companies Act. 

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS NUMBERS 2.1 TO 2.3: APPOINTMENT OF THE 
MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE OF THE COMPANY
In terms of Section 94(2) of the Companies Act, a public company must at each annual general 
meeting elect an audit and risk committee comprising at least three members who are directors 
and who meet the criteria of Section 94(4) of the Companies Act. Regulation 42 to the Companies 
Act specifies that one-third of the members of the audit and risk committee must have 
appropriate academic qualifications or experience in the areas as listed in the regulation.

The board is satisfied that the proposed members of the audit and risk committee meet all 
relevant requirements.

The purpose of these resolutions is to appoint or re-appoint, as the case may be, by way of 
separate resolutions, the following independent non-executive directors as members of the audit 
and risk committee:
• Mr Grant Pattison (Chairperson)
• Ms Zukie Siyotula*
• Leo Chou

*   Subject to the approval of ordinary resolution 1

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 3: RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS
BDO South Africa Incorporated has indicated its willingness to be re-appointed in office and 
ordinary resolution 3 proposes the re-appointment of the firm as the company’s auditors with 
effect from 1 March 2020. Section 90(3) of the Companies Act requires the designated auditor to 
meet the criteria as set out in Section 90(2) of the Companies Act.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING – EXPLANATORY NOTES
for the year ended 29 February 2020
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The board is satisfied that both BDO South Africa Incorporated and the individual designated 
auditor, being Ms Serena Ho, meet the relevant requirements.

The reason for ordinary resolution 3 is that the company, being a public-listed company, must have 
its annual financial statements audited and such auditor must be appointed or re-appointed, as 
the case may be, at each annual general meeting of the company as required by the Companies 
Act and the JSE Listings Requirements.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS NUMBERS 4 AND 5: CONTROL OF AND AUTHORITY 
TO ISSUE AUTHORISED BUT UNISSUED SHARES FOR CASH
In terms of the Companies Act, directors are authorised to allot and issue the unissued shares of 
the company, unless otherwise provided in the company’s memorandum of incorporation or in 
instances as listed in Section 41 of the Companies Act. The JSE requires that the memorandum of 
incorporation should provide that shareholders in a general meeting may authorise the directors to 
issue unissued securities and/or grant options to subscribe for unissued securities as the directors in 
their discretion think fit, provided that such transaction(s) has/have been approved by the JSE and 
are subject to the JSE Listings Requirements. In the absence of the memorandum of incorporation 
as contemplated in the Companies Act, ordinary resolution number 4 has been included to confirm 
directors’ authority to issue shares. Directors confirm that there is no specific intention to issue any 
shares, other than as part of and in terms of the rules of the company’s share incentive scheme, as 
at the date of this notice of the annual general meeting.

Also, in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the authority to issue shares for cash as set out 
in ordinary resolution number 5 requires the approval of a 75% majority of the votes cast by 
shareholders present or represented by proxy at the annual general meeting for ordinary resolution 
number 5 to become effective.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS NUMBERS 6.1 AND 6.2: ADVISORY ENDORSEMENT 
OF REMUNERATION POLICY AND IMPLEMENTATION REPORT ON THE 
REMUNERATION POLICY
King IV™ recommends, and the JSE Listings Requirements require, that the company’s 
remuneration policy and implementation report on the remuneration policy be tabled to 
shareholders for non-binding advisory votes at each annual general meeting of the company to 
provide shareholders with an opportunity to indicate should they not be in support of the material 
provisions of the remuneration philosophy and policy of the company.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 7: SIGNING AUTHORITY
Authority is required to do all such things, sign all such documents and take all such action as may 
be necessary to implement the resolutions set out in this notice of the annual general meeting 
and approved at the annual general meeting. It is proposed that the company secretary and/or any 
one director be authorised accordingly.  

SPECIAL RESOLUTION 1: APPROVAL OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ 
REMUNERATION
In terms of Sections 66(8) and 66(9) of the Companies Act, companies may pay remuneration to 
directors for their services as directors unless otherwise stated by the company’s memorandum of 
incorporation and on approval of shareholders by way of a special resolution. Executive directors 
are not specifically remunerated for their services as directors but as employees of the company 
and as such, the resolution, as included in this notice of the annual general meeting, requests 
approval of the remuneration payable to non-executive directors for their services as directors of 
the company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING – EXPLANATORY NOTES 
CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020
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SPECIAL RESOLUTION 2: GENERAL AUTHORITY TO REPURCHASE SHARES
Section 48 of the Companies Act authorises the board to approve the acquisition of its shares 
subject to the provisions of Sections 46 and 48 having been met. To ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act, the JSE Listings Requirements and the provisions of the 
company’s memorandum of incorporation, a special resolution is proposed to provide authority to 
the company (or one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries) to acquire the company’s shares.

In terms of Section 48(2)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, subsidiaries may not hold more than 10%, 
in aggregate, of the number of the issued shares of any class of a company. For the avoidance of 
doubt, a pro rata purchase by the company for all its shareholders will not require shareholder 
approval, save to the extent as may be required by the Companies Act.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION 3: FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO RELATED AND INTER- 
RELATED COMPANIES
Sections 44(2) and 45(2) of the Companies Act authorises the board to provide direct or indirect 
financial assistance to a related or inter-related company or to any person in connection with any 
securities issued or to be issued by the company or a related or inter-related company, subject to 
sub-sections (3) and (4) of Section 45 of the Companies Act and unless otherwise provided in the 
memorandum of incorporation. In terms of Section 45(3) of the Companies Act, a special resolution 
of shareholders is required in these instances.

The main purpose of this special resolution as set out in this notice of the annual general meeting 
is to approve the granting of inter-company loans, a recognised and well-known practice, details 
of which are also set out in the notes to the annual financial statements. In addition, the resolution 
will facilitate the granting of guarantees and security in connection with the borrowings by the 
Luxe group of companies.

Special resolution number 3 will be effective only if and to the extent that such resolution is 
adopted by the shareholders of the company, and the provision of any such direct or indirect 
financial assistance by the company, according to such resolution, will always be subject to the 
board being satisfied that (i) immediately after providing such financial assistance, the company 
will satisfy the solvency and liquidity test as referred to in Sections 44(3)(b)(i) and 45(3)(b)(i) of the 
Companies Act, (ii) the terms under which such financial assistance is to be given are fair and 
reasonable to the company as referred to in Section 44(3)(b)(ii) and 45(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies 
Act and (iii) all relevant conditions and restrictions (if any) relating to the granting of financial 
assistance by the company as contained in the company’s memorandum of incorporation have 
been met.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING – EXPLANATORY NOTES 
CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020



Condensed consolidated results | 2020 13

SHAREHOLDERS’ ANALYSIS
for the year ended 29 February 2020

Number of
 shareholdings % 

Number of
 shares % 

Shareholder spread
1 – 1 000 shares 1 225 34.17 374 689 0.02

1 001 – 10 000 shares 1 307 36.46 5 509 669 0.25

10 001 – 100 000 shares 787 21.95 25 783 887 1.16

100 001 – 1 000 000 shares 202 5.63 59 099 192 2.66

1 000 001 – 10 000 000 shares 50 1.39 169 543 021 7.63

10 000 001 shares and over 14 0.39 1 961 190 490 88.28

Total 3 585 100.00 2 221 500 948 100.00

Distribution of shareholders
Banks/brokers 22 0.61 1 704 375 891 76.72

Close corporations 21 0.59 1 781 357 0.08

Endowment funds 5 0.14 89 159 477 4.01

Individuals 3 388 94.50 136 599 093 6.15

Insurance companies 4 0.11 93 999 280 4.23

Mutual funds 5 0.14 49 107 411 2.21

Other corporations 12 0.33 20 846 974 0.94

Private companies 49 1.37 58 521 152 2.63

Public companies 3 0.08 550 000 0.02

Share trusts 1 0.03 785 037 0.04

Trusts 75 2.09 65 775 276 2.96

Total 3 585 100.00 2 221 500 948 100.00

Public/non-public shareholders
Non-public shareholders 13 0.36 1 600 209 714 72.03

Directors and Associates of the company 6 0.17 15 872 147 0.71

Share trust 1 0.03 785 037 0.04

Strategic holdings (more than 10%) 6 0.17 1 583 552 530 71.28

Public shareholders 3 572 99.64 621 291 234 27.97

Total 3 585 100.00 2 221 500 948 100.00

Beneficial shareholders holding 2% or 
more. other than directors
Protea Asset Management LLC.Riskowitz 
Capital Management LLC.Snowball Wealth. 
Midbrook Lane (Pty) Ltd & Conduit Capital 1 583 552 530 71.28

UBS Switzerland (Custodian) 165 724 125 7.46

Aaron Beare Foundation 89 127 863 4.01

PSG Konsult 49 107 411 2.21

Total 1 887 511 929 84.97

Annexure A
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STATED CAPITAL
for the year ended 29 February 2020

Group Company

Number of shares Number of shares

2020 2019 2020 2019

Ordinary shares of no par value

Authorised 4 000 000 000 4 000 000 000 4 000 000 000 4 000 000 000

Issued (fully paid-up) 2 221 500 948 2 221 500 948 2 221 500 948 2 221 500 948

In issue at 1 March 901 500 948 901 500 948 901 500 948 901 500 948

Rights issue  
(25 February 2019)1 1 320 000 000 1 320 000 000 1 320 000 000 1 320 000 000

In issue at 29 February 2 221 500 948 2 221 500 948 2 221 500 948 2 221 500 948

Treasury shares2 (2 531 443) (2 531 443) (2 531 443) (2 531 443)

In issue at 29 February – 
excluding treasury shares2 2 218 969 505 2 218 969 505 2 218 969 505 2 218 969 505
1  Shares issued at R0.10.
2  Treasury shares held by Taste Holdings Share Trust.    

1 778 499 052 (2019: 1 778 499 052) unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors in 
terms of a resolution passed at the last annual general meeting. This authority remains in force until the 
next annual general meeting.

75 000 000 (2019: 75 000 000) of the unissued ordinary shares are specifically reserved for the share 
incentive scheme, of which 10 009 606 (2019: 17 824 163) options have already been offered to and 
accepted by employees. Shares forfeited during the year totals 3 417 591. Shares taken up during the  
year 4 396 966.

Group
Value of shares

Company
Value of shares

2020
R’000

2019
R’000

2020
R’000

2019
R’000

Balance at 1 March 1 238 765 1 112 162 1 251 537 1 124 934

Rights issue (235) 126 603 (235) 126 603

Total 1 238 530 1 238 765 1 251 302 1 251 537
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OUR REMUNERATION  
PHILOSOPHY 
The group’s remuneration policy is based 
on the premise that fair and competitive 
remuneration motivates individual 
achievement and enhances a company’s 
general performance. We achieve what we 
believe is fair and competitive remuneration by 
combining fixed and performance-enhancing 
incentives to attract and retain competent 
and experienced employees. We recognise 
that senior management has more influence 
over the long term than junior management 
and seeks to reward those who are committed 
for the long term. We seek to align individual 
performance with group performance and set 
individual objectives accordingly. The company 
seeks to utilise efficient and transparent 
remuneration practices that are conservatively 
aligned with best practice, regulation and 
legislation. There were no changes made to the 
remuneration policy during the financial year. 

BASE REMUNERATION POLICY 
As part of its strategy to attract and retain 
top individuals in their area of expertise, the 
company’s strategy is to pay base salaries in 
the 50th percentile, as per external salary 
surveys. Our base pay for executive directors 
and senior management is benchmarked 
annually against direct industry peers, 
comparable listed companies, and we utilise 
at least one salary survey consultancy. We also 
take into consideration the revenue, profit and 
the number of employees and assets under 
each person’s control. Where no adjustment 
is due to an employee, salary increases are 
guided by a combination of the consumer 
price index and prevailing trends among listed 
companies, based on surveys carried out by 
specialist companies. 

Besides the retrenchment package to 
the previous CEO, which is disclosed in 
the remuneration note, no other ex gratia 
payments were made to directors, executive 
committee or management committee 
members. 

RETENTION AND INCENTIVE POLICY 
The main purpose of our remuneration policy 
and structure is to align management and 
shareholder interests. At the core of this 
alignment are the retention of key employees 
and the linking of management performance 
measures to shareholder and enterprise value. 
To this end, the group uses two structures 
to retain employees. Our short-term cash 
incentive programme rewards increases in 
company profitability, while our long-term 
share incentive scheme rewards increases in 
enterprise value and creates disincentives for 
participating employees to leave the group’s 
employ. 

SHORT-TERM CASH INCENTIVE  
PROGRAMME 
Participants in the long-term share incentive 
scheme (“LTI”), as well as selected other 
participants, have as part of their potential 
annual remuneration the ability to earn a 
cash payment based on annual audited profit 
targets set by the board annually. 

This is in terms of a short-term cash incentive 
scheme (“STI”). The amount an individual can 
earn is capped based on recommendations 
from external remuneration specialists. 

LONG-TERM SHARE INCENTIVE 
SCHEME 
The company operates the Share Trust which 
incorporates, among other things, share option 
schemes which enable executive directors and 
executive management to benefit from the 
company’s share price performance and form 
part of the retention strategy for key executive 
management.

There are two schemes in operation, which 
details are included below: 

REMUNERATION REPORT
Annexure B
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SCHEME 1 
This scheme confers the right to participants 
to acquire ordinary shares at a strike price of 
43 cents per share (30-day volume-weighted 
average of company shares on the grant date). 
Options vest in three tranches from the second 
anniversary of the option grant date. Once 
vesting of a tranche has been triggered, a 
third of the options within the tranche can be 
exercised one year after vesting was triggered, 
a further third, two years after the vesting 
was triggered and the final third, three years 
after the vesting was triggered. The options 
must be exercised within five years of vesting 
having been triggered. Upon cessation of 
employment, options that have been granted 
and accepted, but not yet vested, are forfeited 
unless approval is obtained from the trustees. 

All options must be exercised no later than the 
eighth anniversary on which they were granted 
unless approval is obtained from the trustees. 

SCHEME 6 
This scheme was approved by shareholders 
in January 2016 and replaced schemes 2 – 5. 
Share options comprise two types of options, 
namely retention and performance options. 
Retention options have no strike price and 
the performance options have a strike price 
equal to the volume-weighted average price 
(“VWAP”) of an ordinary share over the 30 
business days immediately preceding the 
option grant date. Options vest and can be 
exercised in three equal tranches, beginning 
on the third anniversary of the option grant 
date up to the fifth anniversary of the option 
grant date. All options must be exercised 
by no later than the sixth anniversary of the 
option grant date unless approval is obtained 
from trustees. Upon cessation of employment, 
options that have been granted and accepted, 
but not yet vested, are forfeited unless approval 
is obtained from the trustees. The scheme is 
compliant with Schedule 14 of the JSE Listings 
Requirements, and the revision to the scheme 
will remain compliant. 

The revised scheme is based on the following 
principles: 
• Share options are awarded annually, with 

no conditions being attached to the award. 
An award in one year is not a de facto 
guarantee of an award for the forthcoming 
year or any year thereafter. 

• Share options are split into two types of 
options: 

 – Options that have no strike price: 
  >  when exercised, the purchase price to 

be paid for these shares is zero cents. 
These are referred to as “Retention 
Options” and are designed to retain 
employees. 

 – Options that have a strike price: 
  >  when exercised, the purchase price to 

be paid for the shares which are the 
subject of the option is the 30-day 
VWAP; and 

  >  are adjusted based on the achievement 
of certain performance targets. 

These are referred to as “performance options” 
and closely align any value created with an 
increase in enterprise value and ultimately the 
share price. 
•  The number of options granted annually 

is calculated based on a multiple of a 
participant’s annual cost-to-company, 
excluding cash bonuses received during the 
relevant period, divided by the VWAP when 
the remuneration committee approves the 
grant. 

•  The multiples of cost-to-company per band 
take into account seniority, responsibility 
and contribution to the group. The 
multiples are between the 25th and the 
50th percentiles of actual multiples issued 
for JSE-listed companies and reviewed 
by the board annually, as advised by a 
remuneration consultancy. The multiples 
for retention options range from 0.25 to 
0.65 times annual cost-to-company, and 
multiples for performance options range 
from 1 to 2.15 times annual cost-to-company. 

REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED
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•  Both options are exercisable in three equal 
tranches, with the first tranche being 
exercisable 36 months after the date of 
acceptance of the award, the second 
tranche 12 months thereafter and the third 
and final tranche 12 months after that. 

•  In line with best practice and King IVTM, 
the scheme introduces the concept of 
conditions of exercise and, in the case 
of performance options, introduces 
an adjustment, including a potential 
“clawback”, to the number of options that 
are exercisable based on the achievement of 
certain performance targets. 

 –  Exercise of a retention option is 
conditional on the participant being in 
the employ of the group. 

 –  Exercise of performance options is 
conditional on the participant being 
in the employ of the group, and the 
number of performance options that are 
exercisable are adjusted according to 
the achievement of certain performance 
targets, as follows: 

  >  The performance targets are the 
financial targets, at divisional or brand 
level, that are agreed to annually by 
the board and are currently based 
on core operating profit budgets 
for the forthcoming year. Certain 
senior executives, including the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer, are currently measured on core 
headline earnings per share growth 
over the three-years prior to exercise, as 
well as core EBITDA growth. 

  >  The number of performance options 
that the participant can exercise can 
increase (capped at 50% of the original 
award) or decrease (to zero) from the 
original award, based on the average 
performance over the three years before 
exercise, in accordance with a pre-
agreed sliding scale. This ensures that 
consistently sustainable financial results 
are rewarded. 

  >  “Core” earnings will be determined by 
the audit committee. 

  >  All shares must be exercised within  
six years. 

REMUNERATION  
IMPLEMENTATION REPORT 
Shareholders will be requested to provide 
a non-binding advisory vote on the 
implementation report at the annual general 
meeting (refer to notice of the annual general 
meeting on page 11). Non-executive directors’ 
fees for the financial year ending 28 February 
2021 are detailed on page 5. Having regard  
to the financial circumstances of the Group, 
the F2021 fees payable to non-executive 
directors are a reduction on the fees paid in 
preceding years. 

The remuneration implementation 
report details the outcomes following the 
implementation of the approved remuneration 
policy. The remuneration committee complied 
with the remuneration policy and are not 
aware of any deviations that need to be 
reported. 

The remuneration policy and implementation 
takes into account the performance of 
the group, affordability, current economic 
conditions and strategic intent. 

The main focus this year was to restructure the 
group to ensure it is adequately positioned for 
the future. Specific focus areas included job 
gradings, positions and the overall structure  
of the company. 

ANNUAL INCENTIVE BONUSES 
The awarding of annual incentive bonuses are 
done in line with the group’s remuneration 
policy and stipulated allocation levels. No 
payments have been made in this financial 
year given the company’s performance. 

SHORT-TERM INCENTIVES 
The awarding of short-term incentives are done 
in line with the group’s remuneration policy 
and stipulated allocation levels. No payment or 
awards have been made in this financial year 
given the company’s performance.

REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED
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LONG-TERM INCENTIVES 
The awarding of long-term retention incentives 
were in line with the group’s remuneration 
policy and stipulated allocation level. No 
payment or awards have been made in 
this financial year given the company’s 
performance. 

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’  
REMUNERATION 
The participation of non-executive directors in 
the group is essential to the group achieving 
its strategic objectives and non-executive 
directors’ fees are therefore recommended by 
the remuneration and nomination committee 
with this in mind. 

The non-executive directors’ remuneration for 
the year ended 29 February 2020 was in line 
with the group’s remuneration policy. 

In accordance with the Companies Act, No. 
71 of 2008, as amended, and the company’s 
memorandum of incorporation, non-
executive directors’ fees are approved by the 
shareholders at the annual general meeting. 
The current fee levels are approved by 
shareholders at the annual general meeting 
and are stated on page 5 of the notice of 
annual general meeting included in this 
integrated annual report. 

There are no fixed-term service contracts 
for executive or non-executive directors. The 
remuneration and nomination committee 
reviewed the employment contracts of the 
chairperson, group chief executive officer 
and chief financial officer and found these 
to be still appropriate to meet the needs of 
the company. The notice period for executive 
directors is three months, or as agreed by the 
remuneration committee.

REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED
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HIGHLIGHTS

INDEPENDENT AUDIT BY THE AUDITOR
These summarised group financial statements for the year ended 29 February 2020 have been 
extracted from the completed financial statements on which the auditors; BDO Inc., have 
expressed an unmodified opinion, dated 18 September 2020.

The summarised report is extracted from the audited information but is not itself audited.

The directors take full responsibility for the preparation of this report and that the financial 
information has been correctly extracted from the underlying annual financial statements.

The auditor’s report and the annual financial statements, which have been summarised in this 
report, are available for inspection at www.luxeholdings.co.za

Annexure C

Group revenue (from continuing operations) decreased by 6% to R459 million.

Gross profit and gross profit % (from continuing operations) 
increased by 1% to R188 million and from 38% to 41%.

Loss before taxation (from continuing operations) decreased by 73% to 
R17 million.

Luxury Goods Division’s operating profit improved from a 
loss of R43 million to a R12.2 million profit.

Concluded the outsourcing of non-core operations.  

Headline loss per share decreased by 63% to 9.4 cents (2019: 25.6 
cents). The per share improvement was mainly a function of the increase in the 
weighted average number of shares in issue.

Loss per share decreased by 44% to 19.7 cents (2019: 35.0 cents). The per 
share improvement was mainly a function of the increase in the weighted average 
number of shares in issue.
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There was a great deal of activity during the 
year as we disposed of the Food Division brands 
and continued to restructure our Luxury Goods 
Division. 

In February 2019, shareholders were advised 
that the long term objective of management for 
Starbucks and Domino’s was to reach EBITDA 
break-even across brands within a  
36 – 40 month period after the commencement 
of the expansion plan, and to attain positive free 
cash flows after CAPEX across both brands within 
7 to 8 years of commencement of the plan. Cash 
inflow of at least R700 million was required 
to reach a positive free cash flow. After careful 
consideration, it became evident that the capital 
investment required could not be secured and 
the board decided that in the best interests of 
the company and all stakeholders to exit the food 
businesses. Consequently, Starbucks, Maxi’s and 
the Fish & Chips Co were sold and Taste Food 
Franchising Proprietary Limited (the company 
housing the Domino’s Pizza brand), Taste 
Commissary Proprietary Limited and Taste Food 
Trading 1 Proprietary Limited were placed into 
liquidation in March 2020. This was as a result of 
being unable to sell the Domino’s Pizza business 
in a specified timeframe as Domino’s Pizza LLC 
was unwilling to fund the sale process any further.

The Luxury Goods Division was not impacted by 
the liquidations and will continue with its strategy 
as a focused luxury retail business. Going forward 
the company will focus only on the Luxury Goods 
Division consisting of NWJ, Arthur Kaplan and 
World’s Finest Watches. 

LUXURY GOODS DIVISION 
We look back on fiscal 2020 as a year of progress 
on the Luxury Division’s strategic initiatives. 
The year commenced amid difficult economic 
and political developments which affected the 
operating environment. A constrained retail 
environment presented us with challenges in 
achieving our sales targets, coupled with the 
challenges to maintain our balance of core 
inventory, newness, and the need to clear slow-
moving ranges. Adding to the tough trading 
environment, the Luxury Division continued to be 
plagued by robberies and suffered losses 3.5-fold 
of the prior year although the number of incidents 
were down on the prior year. 

Consumer confidence was low, and retailers 
worldwide faced strong headwinds suffering a 
drop in sales. However, we commenced rolling out 

our new strategy, repositioning and rebranding 
our stores. We completely transformed to ensure 
we remain brands of choice and win market share. 
Our design and marketing teams conceptualised 
and successfully rebranded and redesigned all 
three retail formats (NWJ, Arthur Kaplan and 
World’s Finest Watches) outlets to elevate them to 
become the most desirable jewellery and watch 
stores to visit and shop at. Revamping the stores 
and introducing the new designs commenced in 
March 2019 and will continue into the new year. 

The NWJ store look and feel is fresh, underpinned 
by a new vibrant customer experience, better 
positioning the brand and sparking desire in 
the customer to shop with NWJ. This was in line 
with our focus to elevate our stores to the level of 
becoming amongst the most desirable jewellery 
stores to visit and delivering a quality browsing 
and shopping customer experience. 

For Arthur Kaplan, the store design and concept 
are a complete departure from our previous 
business model. The focus is directed at driving 
more jewellery sales, thus increasing the 
profitability of the store while being supported 
by the luxury Swiss watch brands and mid-tier 
fashion watch brands in a store environment 
that is more inviting to loyal and potential new 
customers. 

World’s Finest Watches new model is more 
modern and is expected to appeal to both the 
high-end Rolex customer with a dedicated Rolex 
shop in-shop experience but at the same time 
be an environment that is more inviting for the 
individual buying their first luxury Swiss watch. 
This new rebranding comes with an updated 
website and an entirely new branding across all 
touchpoints.

The Luxury Goods Division consists of 54  
(40 corporate and 14 franchise) NWJ retail  
outlets, 6 Arthur Kaplan and 1 World’s Finest 
Watches. Through Arthur Kaplan and World’s 
Finest Watches, the division is a leading retailer  
of luxury Swiss watches in South Africa, with 
brands like Rolex, IWC, Cartier, Zenith, Hublot, 
Omega, Breitling, TAG Heuer, Longines, Tudor, 
Montblanc, Frederique Constant, Rado, among its 
custodian brands. 

NWJ 
NWJ recovered from low sales level to deliver a 
commendable result, improving on operating 
profit for the year. The main revenue driver has 
been the positive same-store performance of 

COMMENTARY
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the 40 NWJ corporate stores, Franchise store 
performance continued to be disappointing. 

NWJ gross margin percentage improved by 
1.7%. The improvement on last year supports our 
strategic decision to close our factory last year and 
outsource our manufacturing. 

The company underwent an update of corporate 
identity to appeal to a younger and more modern 
target audience. The new corporate identity with 
its fresh look and feel will be incorporated into the 
revamped stores to ensure we deliver a unique 
shopping experience. 

During the year, four corporate stores and one 
franchise store were revamped. Following the 
refurbishment, we have had pleasing growth. 
Four unprofitable corporate stores were closed, 
and one new corporate store was opened in 
December 2019 in Sandton City. 

A great deal of attention was placed on customer 
training to ensure a focused workforce with an 
improved appearance to deliver on customers’ 
expectations. Customers are becoming more 
discerning and we need to be on top of the latest 
trends to ensure we are the brand of choice. As a 
result of our continued efforts, complaints have 
reduced significantly. 

Our online store has grown as more and more 
consumers enjoy the convenience of online 
browsing and shopping. The online range 
comprises the best of our product range in core 
and fashion items to attract new consumers 
and provide convenience to our existing loyal 
customers. 

Lower consumer disposable income affected credit 
sales. We have introduced tablets at key stores to 
assist in the credit application process which will 
enable faster approval turnaround which in turn 
should contribute to enhancing sales.

We will continue with our regular promotions 
throughout all stores. Additional excitement and 
discounts do boost sales, although Black Friday 
weekend that had excellent sales does continue 
to impact and erode the traditional December 
Christmas sales. 

ARTHUR KAPLAN
Arthur Kaplan enjoyed an exciting and busy year 
delivering strong results. We delivered positive 
sales for the year in these difficult times mainly 
due to the sale of our premium watch brands. 

Gross profit margin improved by 2.6%; the result 
of a heightened focus on reducing discounting 
in watches across the board, however jewellery 
margins continue to be constrained as we 
continued an aggressive campaign to clear 
slow-moving inventory. Despite the reduction in 
jewellery sales, there has been an increase in units 
sold as consumers continue to seek value and is 
indicative of a constrained consumer. 

We embarked on a new jewellery strategy of 
everyday low pricing on new items, the strategic 
change in the jewellery focus was to become 
fresher in the jewellery offering to strengthen sales 
and a continued focus on the watch offering. The 
aim is to appeal to a broader, younger, and more 
modern jewellery customer who would then grow 
and identify with the new branded Arthur Kaplan 
concept into the future. In line with our strategy of 
offering better value, there has been an increase 
in sales of jewellery units as consumers continue 
to seek value and indicative of a constrained 
consumer. 

Arthur Kaplan benefited from a makeover with 
a new logo, packaging, display materials, and a 
new website. This was backed up by an aggressive 
drive to increase the digital footprint and social 
awareness. Although watch sales are dominant 
and a clear focus, a fresher jewellery offering 
strengthened sales. The new creative direction 
appealed to the younger more modern jewellery 
customer. 

At year-end there were 7 Arthur Kaplan stores,  
2 loss-making stores were closed during the year 
and the first of our newly designed stores was 
opened at Fourways Mall in August 2019 and 
the refurbished Menlyn Mall store opened in 
October offering a range of luxury watch brands 
from mid-tier through to the high-end customer. 
E-commerce was launched in August 2019 and 
since launch, sales have exceeded expectations 
with strong demand for jewellery and watches.  

WORLD’S FINEST WATCHES
World’s Finest Watches reopened in April 2019 
after an eight-week refurbishment. The store has 
performed exceptionally post the refurbishment. 
World’s Finest Watches enjoyed a complete 
branding makeover, the new corporate identity 
receiving high praise and proving popular with 
our customers. The sales for the year are above 
expectations, Rolex sales were constrained due to 
the worldwide supply limitations of the brand.  

COMMENTARY CONTINUED
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STRATEGY 
The revised strategy, focusing on Luxury Goods, 
and business model lay the foundations for the 
business to grow sustainably. We will continue 
to position our brands as offering great value 
and affordable luxury to the broad middle to 
upper market. Our vision is to be the preferred 
jewellery and premium watch retailer of choice 
in Southern Africa delivering a memorable 
shopping experience with a work environment 
that inspires our employees to give of their best 
for the company and customers. Our focus is to 
put the customer at the centre of everything we 
do, delivering an affordable luxury omnichannel 
experience and becoming a part of their life 
journey. 

Our immediate focus is to achieve recovery in 
the short to medium term post the impact 
of COVID-19. Our response to COVID-19 and 
lockdown was to improve the resilience of 
the business during the period of operational 
weakness and minimize the impact upon our 
valuable employees and stakeholders. These 
included a freeze on all uncommitted capital 
expenditure, cost containment including the 
suspension of annual salary increases and the 
reduction of fixed and variable costs, all of which 
were designed to preserve and optimise our cash 
flow. Also adjusting inventory levels by cancelling 
or delaying orders, suspending the payment of 
rent temporarily, suspending planned new store 
openings, and extending supplier payment terms 
where possible. We have taken steps to secure 
our working capital requirements by agreeing 
with our banks to increase our working capital 
facility to enable us to trade through this period of 
uncertainty. 

Our ambitions are to increase our footprint in 
under-represented regions, however fully mindful 
of assessing the viability of locations based on 
appropriate quantitative, qualitative, and technical 
criteria, appropriate retail indices and leasing 
considerations. We continually perform gap 
analysis to identify suitable sites which we can 
capitalise on. 

The renewal of leases coupled with store 
revamping clauses will continue to be considered 
in line with our investment criteria hurdle rate. We 
will be fully engaged in improving or exiting sites 
that are loss-making and show no improvement 
in retail metric performance, as well as, seeking 
and securing rental reductions on lease renewals 
and marginal stores. 

We will enhance our customer service and 
experience skills and expertise through a range 
of training programmes and on the job training. 
Our recruitment and training of store employees 
will be focused on building high standards of 
service and experience excellence required by the 
business and in the context of a competitive retail 
landscape. 

Online will continue to be an important focus and 
driver of sales where we do not have a physical 
presence, as well as providing an easy convenient 
modern shopping experience for the current and 
new younger customer; the onset of COVID-19 
has accelerated the shift in consumer behaviour 
to online shopping. Online merchandise 
assortment will continue to grow and evolve being 
enhanced with new product, stock assortment 
will constantly be reviewed to keep the product 
offering fresh and exciting for the customer.

Security will continue to be a priority; we are in 
the process of rolling out further preventative 
security measures to reduce the number of 
robbery incidents. 

We have prioritised digital transformation as a 
core strategic imperative, essential to accelerate 
the Luxury Goods Division’s growth within an 
evolving online consumer retail environment. The 
impact of this digital transformation will impact 
and stretch across our business guiding and 
enhancing our decision-making capabilities.  

We have laid out the groundwork for the long 
journey to continued sustainable growth as one 
of the leaders in the luxury watches and jewellery 
category. The success and momentum of 2020 
has shown that we are on the right path. 

REVIEW OF THE GROUP 
PERFORMANCE 
OPERATING PERFORMANCE –  
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (LUXURY 
GOODS DIVISION AND CORPORATE  
SERVICES OFFICE) 
Trading performance in a challenging 
environment was much improved, driven by 
positive NWJ corporate same-store sales, gross 
margin improvement across the business and 
vigilant cost containment. Inventory and cash 
continued to be well managed, inventory days 
improved 11% over the prior period and cash 
generated from operations improved by 58%. 

COMMENTARY CONTINUED
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System-wide sales reduced by 7% to R473 million 
(2019: R506 million) because of store closures in 
NWJ (5 stores); Arthur Kaplan (2 stores) and  
7 stores being refurbished during this period. 
Same store sales were -2.2% (corporate stores 
-1.5%); NWJ -0.5% (corporate stores +2.1%; 
franchise stores -7.3%); Arthur Kaplan and World’s 
Finest Watches -3.5%. Retail selling price inflation 
was -4.6%; in line with our strategy of offering 
better value, there has been an increase in sales 
of jewellery units as consumers continue to seek 
value at lower price points.

Group revenue (Luxury Goods Division) decreased 
by 6% to R459 million (2019: R490 million), a result 
of planned store closures and stores closed for 
refurbishment. This is in line with our strategy to 
close non-performing, unprofitable stores and 
actively managing our retail portfolio. 

Gross profit margin (Luxury Goods Division) has 
improved from 38% to 41% due to the benefits 
realised from closing our manufacturing facility, 
outsourcing to a third-party manufacturer, less 
discounting and optimising our supply chain. 
Gross profit improved 1% to R188 million (2019: 
R186 million).

Operating expenses decreased by R49 million 
(20%) to total R200 million (2019: R249 million). 
The Luxury Goods Division expenses decreased  
to R185 million (2019: R232 million) and Corporate 
expenses decreased to R15 million (2019:  
R17 million). 

Included in operating expenses (Luxury Goods 
Division and Corporate Services) are impairments 
and once-off costs totalling R7.2 million (2019: 
R50.7 million). The costs consisted mainly of 
impairments of R5.8 million (2019: R40.3 million) 
and once-off restructuring and retrenchment 
costs of R1.4 million (2019: R10.4 million). Excluding 
the impairments and once-off costs, operating 
expenses decreased by R6 million (3%) to total 
R193 million (2019: R199 million), which is mainly 
due to cost containment, store closures and 
savings arising as a result of the restructuring of 
the business. 

Operating loss from continuing operation of  
R3.6 million (2019: R61.9 million loss) represents 
a R58.3 million improvement; including 
impairments of R5.8 million (2019: R44 million) 
and once-off costs of R1.4 million (2019:  
R10.4 million).

The Luxury Goods Division operating performance 
improved  from a loss of R43 million to an 
operating profit of R12.2 million; including 
impairments of R5.8 million (2019: R40.3 million) 
and once-off costs of R1.4 million (2019:  
R3.8 million).

Corporate Services operating loss reduced to  
R15.9 million (2019: R18.9 million). 

OPERATING PERFORMANCE –  
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
The loss on discontinued operations, after 
investment revenue, finance cost and taxation 
of R417 million (2019: R254 million) is in respect 
of the local brands, comprising Maxi’s and The 
Fish & Chip Co, and Starbucks business which 
were disposed of, effective 2 December 2019 and 
the remaining food business, consisting of the 
Domino’s business, given the decision to exit the 
food business. 

Revenue for the discontinued operations 
decreased by 18% to R386 million (2019:  
R469 million) which is mainly attributable to: 
•   weaker performance, evidence by lower System-

wide sales, of all these brands during the period 
under review; 

•   the inclusion of Maxi’s and The Fish & Chip Co, and 
Starbuck business only until 2 December 2019  
(9 months of the year) due to the disposals; and 

•   Outsourcing of our group supply chain activities 
(Taste Commissary). 

Gross profit margin has decreased from 47% 
to 41%, a combination of weaker gross profits 
achieved in the brands and write-off of inventories. 
Gross profit decreased 28% (R61 million) to R158 
million (2019: R219 million). 

Operating expenses increased by R122 million 
(29%) to total R550 million (2019: R428 million). 

Included in operating expenses are impairments 
and once-off costs totalling R229 million (2019: 
R72 million). The costs consisted mainly of 
impairments of R159 million (2019: R66 million) 
and once-off items (being the loss of sale of 
business) of R68 million (2019: R6 million, once-off 
restructuring and retrenchment costs).

Excluding the impairments and once-off items, 
operational costs decreased by R35 million (10%) 
to total R321 million (2019: R355 million). The 
inclusion of Maxi’s and The Fish & Chip Co, and 
Starbucks business only until 2 December 2019  

COMMENTARY CONTINUED
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COMMENTARY CONTINUED

(9 months of the year) and outsourcing of 
the supply chain activities contributed to the 
decrease. 

Operating loss (loss before investment revenue, 
finance costs and taxation) of R389 million (2019: 
R199 million loss) representing a R190 million 
increase in loss.

OUTLOOK AND TRADING UPDATE
We anticipate the local economy will be put 
under strain resulting from the impact of the 
COVID-19 virus, commodity price pressures, Eskom 
constraints and increased unemployment. Even 
before COVID-19 became a global pandemic; 
South Africa was in a recession; government 
debt is on the rise; the rand is weak against 
the dollar and load-shedding remains a reality. 
As government provides financial relief to 
businesses impacted by COVID-19, liquidity 
challenges, retrenchments and business closures 
are inevitable. Our planning will take this into 
account.

Our response to COVID-19 and lockdown was to 
implement several cost-containment measures, 
improve the resilience of the business during the 
period of operational weakness and minimise 
the impact upon our valuable employees. 
These included suspending uncommitted 
capital expenditure, suspension of annual salary 
increases, adjusting inventory levels by cancelling 
or delaying orders, suspending the payment of 
rent temporarily, suspending planned new store 
openings and where possible extending supplier 
payment terms, all of which were designed to 
preserve and optimize our cash flow. We took 
steps to secure our working capital requirements 
by agreeing with our banks to increase our 
working capital facility to enable us to trade 
through this period of uncertainty.

Our immediate focus is to achieve recovery in 
the short to medium term post the impact of 
COVID-19; maintain the financial stability of the 
Group through saving costs, preserving and 
generating cash, adapt to safely trading through 
the pandemic and continue to invest in the 
merchandise, systems, infrastructure and new 
business opportunities that will enable us to take 
the business forward once the storm has passed.

NWJ and Arthur Kaplan continued to accept 
online orders during lockdown and when 
regulations were lifted mid-May we began to 

process and distribute these orders. The online 
business was brisk and pleasing, and better 
than expected, illustrating the shift in shopping 
behaviour being experienced across most retail 
formats. Online continues to perform well across 
the brands and we have increased our marketing 
investment to maintain the momentum.

We experienced a dramatic fall off in sales post 
the announcement on the 15th March by the 
President declaring a National State of Disaster 
and the pending lockdown. Post lockdown we 
benefitted from pent up demand and June same 
store sales were +12.7% (NWJ +17.2% and Arthur 
Kaplan/World’s Finest Watches +10.5%) exceeding 
expectations. For Q2, June to August same store 
sales are -6.6%; NWJ -3.2% (corporate stores -2.2%) 
and Arthur Kaplan/World’s Finest Watches -8.6%. 
The effect on sales during lockdown has been 
severe; for the period March to August same store 
sales are -39.7%; NWJ -34.0% (corporate stores 
-31.5%) and Arthur Kaplan/World’s Finest Watches 
-43.3%; stores were closed from 27 March 2020 
and reopened on 1 June 2020. As consumer 
shopping habits started to shift to online, we also 
benefitted, and online sales grew 386% (+185% on 
a comparable basis) for the half year.

Our experience post lockdown is that community 
and neighbourhood store locations outperformed 
major regional shopping nodes and regional 
retail sales performance has correlated with 
COVID-19 infections. We anticipate that 
consumer disposable income will worsen and 
consumers remain financially constrained over 
the coming months as loan relief comes to an 
end, government assistance measures cease and  
savings are depleted. The consumer environment 
is likely to be very challenging for the next 12 to  
18 months.

As we navigate the uncertainty, the outlook for 
trading conditions continues to remain materially 
uncertain, what is clear is that the impact of 
COVID-19 will have a significant impact on the 
Group’s earnings for the financial year 2021, the 
extent of which is difficult to predict with any 
accuracy.

APPRECIATION 
We would like to express our gratitude to the 
Chairman of the Board for guiding the company 
through the most difficult and challenging 
periods in the group’s history. His wise counsel 
and availability throughout this period have 
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been invaluable. We would like to thank our 
stakeholders and anchor shareholders for 
supporting our renewed Luxury Goods strategy 
and focus and believing in the longer-term 
potential of our brands, people, and strategy. 

To our employees, thank you for your dedication, 
professionalism, tenacity, and important role 
you play in our success. To all our customers 
and stakeholders, thank you for your continued 
support. We look forward to growing and 
building on the recent Luxury Goods Division past 
success as we look to the future and explore new 
opportunities to add value to our stakeholders.

DIRECTORATE 
The following changes were made to the board: 

With the resignation of Dylan Pienaar in 
December 2019, Duncan Crosson was promoted 
to Group CEO which is in-line with the company’s 
direction. 

Duncan Crosson is supported by Hannes van 
Eeden as CFO and the executive teams managing 
the Luxury Goods Division. 

Tyrone Moodley and Adrian Maizey resigned as 
non-executive directors after year-end on  
6 March 2020. 

Grant Pattison has stepped down as chairperson 
of the Board, effective 1 August 2020, but 
continues to serve as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and  assumed 
the role of chairperson of the Audit and Risk 
Committee. 

Nonzukiso Siyotula replaced Grant Pattison as 
chairperson of the Board and stepped down as 
chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee, but 
continues to serve as a member of the committee.  

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO YEAR-END 
The board of directors and shareholder of Taste 
Food Franchising Proprietary Limited (“TFF”), Taste 
Commissary Proprietary Limited (“TC”) and Taste 
Food Trading 1 Proprietary Limited. (“TFT’) placed 
TFF, TC and TFT into voluntary liquidation, effective 
19 March 2020.  

TFF and TC are wholly-owned subsidiaries of 
the Company and TFF owns and licenses the 
Domino’s business in South Africa. TFT is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of TFF.

In line with Taste’s revised strategy the board 
engaged with several suitors in order to dispose of 
the Domino’s business. Domino’s Pizza LLC (“DP”) 
provided financial support and assistance during 
this period. Unfortunately, a deal could not be 
concluded on terms acceptable to all parties and 
further financial support was not provided by DP. 
As a result, it was decided to place the respective 
entities into voluntary liquidation. 

COVID-19 and the national lockdown had a 
significant impact on our business as all our 
store were closed from 26 March 2020 to end 
31 May 2020. This had a significant impact on 
our financial performance of projections. We are 
monitoring these closely. 

A general meeting of shareholders of the 
company was held on 26 June 2020 relating to 
the proposed change of name of the company 
and the restructuring of the Company’s 
authorised and issued ordinary share capital by 
consolidation. At the meeting, it was resolved that 
the Company’s authorised ordinary share capital 
comprising of 4 000 000 000 ordinary shares of 
no par value and the Company’s issued ordinary 
share capital comprising of 2 221 500 948 ordinary 
shares of no par value be consolidated on a 100 to 
1 basis and that the name of the Company be and 
is hereby changed from “Taste Holdings Limited” 
to “Luxe Holdings Limited”.

DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS 
No dividend has been declared for the year ended 
29 February 2020. 

On behalf of the board 

DJ Crosson  H van Eeden 
Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer 

17 September  2020

COMMENTARY CONTINUED



Condensed consolidated results | 202026

SUMMARISED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED GROUP 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 29 February 2020

Audited
29 February

2020
 R’000 

Audited
28 February

2019
R’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets  194 670  328 747 
Property, plant and equipment  32 408 168 454 
Right of use of asset  99 162 – 
Intangible assets  45 469 82 501 
Goodwill  9 532  40 165 
Net investment in finance lease  2 038 849 
Other financial assets –  6 484 
Deferred tax  6 061 30 294 

Non-current assets and disposal group classified as  
held for sale

 18 764 – 

Current assets  254 726 456 167 
Inventories  191 679  233 276 
Net investment in finance lease 839  849 
Trade and other receivables  28 312 67 278 
Current tax receivables  1 419 1 590 
Advertising levies  3 760 2 507 
Other financial assets 122 1 775 
Cash and cash equivalents  28 595  148 892 

Total assets  468 160  784 914 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to holders of the company  167 085 621 000 
Stated capital  1 238 765  1 238 765 
Accumulated loss  (1 076 377)  (627 033)
Equity-settled share-based payment reserve  4 697  9 268 

Non-controlling interest 515  1 292 
Non-current liabilities  116 710 27 358 
Borrowings  16 687 – 
Lease liability  86 345 – 
Lease equalisation – 11 833 
Deferred tax  13 678 15 525 

Non-current liabilities and disposal group classified as  
held for sale

 93 292 – 

Current liabilities  90 558 135 264 
Current tax payable –  1 277 
Bank overdrafts  15 623  6 978 
Borrowings – 12 353 
Lease liability  30 187 – 
Lease equalisation –  2 607 
Trade and other payables  44 748 112 049 

Total equity and liabilities  468 160 784 914 
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SUMMARISED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED GROUP 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 29 February 2020

 
% 

change

Audited
12 months

ended
29 February

2020
R’000

Audited
Restated*

12 months
ended

28 February
2019

R’000
Revenue (6)    459 414     489 981 
Sale of goods – Luxury 432 893 454 397
Services rendered and franchise revenue 26 521 35 584
Cost of sales    (271 827)    (303 497)
Gross profit 1    187 587     186 484 

Other income     8 692      1 030 
Operating expenses 20   (199 920)  (249 405)
Operating loss    (3 641)     (61 891)
Investment revenue     5 272      4 062 
Finance costs     (18 173)     (4 282)
Loss before taxation 73    (16 542)     (62 111)
Taxation     (3 443)     (2 325)
Loss from continuing operations     (19 985)     (64 436)
Loss on discontinued operation, net of tax    (417 014) (254 002)
Total comprehensive loss for the year   (436 999)    (318 438)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company (37)   (436 222)    (318 227)
Non-controlling interests     (777)      (211)

  (436 999)    (318 438)
Loss per share attributable to equity holders of the 
company
Basic loss per share (cents) 44 (19,7) (35,0)
Continuing operations (0,9) (7,1)
Discontinued operations (18,8) (27,9)
Fully diluted loss per share (cents) 44 (19,7) (35,0)
Continuing operations (0,9) (7,8)
Discontinued operations (18,8) (27,2)

Reconciliation of headline loss:
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (37)  (436 222)  (318 227)
Adjusted for:
Loss on sale of business 70 242 –
Impairment losses 153 158  85 380 
Loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment  5 308  (610)
Tax effect on headline (loss)/earnings adjustments  (1 486)  137 
Headline loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 11 209 000  (233 320)
Weighted average shares in issue ('000)  2 218 970 909 819
Weighted average diluted shares in issue ('000)  2 228 531 927 195
Loss per share (cents) 44 (19,7) (35,0)
Diluted loss per share (cents) 44 (19,7) (35,0)
Headline loss per share (cents) 63 (9,4) (25,6)
Diluted headline loss per share (cents) 63 (9,4) (25,6)

* The prior year’s figures have been restated in compliance with IFRS 5.
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SUMMARISED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED GROUP 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
for the year ended 29 February 2020

Stated
 capital

R’000

Equity-
settled
 share-
based

 payment
 reserve

R’000

Accu-
mulated

 loss
R’000

Total
 attributable

 to equity
 holders of
 the group

R’000

Non-
controlling

 interest
R’000

Total 
equity
R’000

Balance at  
1 March 2018  1 112 162  10 586  (308 806)  813 942   1 503   815 445 

Share issue  126 603   –   –  126 603   –   126 603 

Share-based 
payment reserve –   (1 318)   –  (1 318)   –   (1 318)

Comprehensive loss 
for the year –   –  (318 227)  (318 227)   (211)   (318 438)

Balance at  
1 March 2019  1 238 765   9 268  (627 033)  621 000   1 292   622 292 

Adjustment from 
adoption of IFRS 16 –   –  (13 122)  (13 122)   –   (13 122)

Share-based 
payment reserve –  (4 571)   –  (4 571)   –   (4 571)

Comprehensive loss 
for the year –   –  (436 222)  (436 222)   (777)   (436 999)

Balance at  
29 February 2020  1 238 765   4 697  (1 076 377)  167 085   515   167 600 
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SUMMARISED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED GROUP 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
for the year ended 29 February 2020

Audited
29 February

2020
 R’000 

Audited
Restated*

28 February
2019

R’000

Cash flows from operating activities  (43 023)  (65 060)

Cash utilised by operating activities (22 427)  (65 171)

Investment revenue  5 272  4 062 

Finance costs  (18 173)  (4 282)

Taxation paid  (7 695)  331 

Cash flows from investing activities  (53 459)  (24 453)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (14 216)  (10 204)

Proceeds of disposals of property, plant and equipment  –  417 

Acquisition of intangible asset (272) (815)

Acquisition of business  (2 486)  – 

Disposal of discontinued operations, net of cash (33 486)  (13 851)

Change in finance lease asset (2 877) –

Loans advanced – other financial assets (122) –

Cash flows from financing activities  (30 544)  135 185 

Issue of shares  –  126 603 

Disposal of discontinued operations, net of cash  (7 471)  – 

Shareholder's loans raised – borrowings  16 696 8 582 

Repayment of shareholder's loans and borrowings  (12 353)  – 

Repayment of lease liability  (27 416) – 

Change in cash and cash equivalents  (127 026)  45 672 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period  141 914  96 242 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period  14 888  141 914 

Continuing operations 12 972  141 914

Non-current assets held for sale 1 916 –

*   The prior year’s figures have been restated in compliance with IFRS 5.
** Refer to note for details to modification from provisional results.
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SUMMARISED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED GROUP  
SEGMENTAL REPORT 
for the year ended 29 February 2020

Audited year ended  
29 February 2020 

 Food 
 Division 

 R’000 

 Luxury
Goods

 Division 
 R’000 

 Corporate 
 Services 

 R’000 
 Total 

 R’000 

Revenue   –  459 414  –  459 414 

Operating profit (loss)   –   12 217  (15 858)  (3 641)

Investment revenue   –   2 611  2 661  5 272 

Finance costs   –   (16 366)  (1 807)  (18 173)

Loss before taxation   –   (1 538)  (15 004)  (16 542)

Segment assets  18 764  400 764  48 632  468 160 

Segment liabilities  93 292  187 289  19 979  300 560 

Segment capital expenditure  28 738  14 217    –   42 955 

Audited year ended  
28 February 2019

Revenue   –    489 981    –    489 981 

Operating loss   –    (42 961)   (18 930)   (61 891)

Investment revenue   –    1 754    2 308   4 062 

Finance costs   –    (2 618)   (1 664)   (4 282)

Loss  before taxation   –    (43 825)   (18 286)   (62 111)

Segment assets  327 102   345 266   112 546   784 914 

Segment liabilities  83 751   61 050   17 821   162 622 

Segment capital expenditure  14 486   10 204    32   24 722 
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARISED CONDENSED 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 29 February 2020

LUXE Holdings Limited (“the company”) is 
a South African registered company. The 
summarised consolidated financial statements 
of the company comprise the company and its 
subsidiaries (together referred to as the group). 

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 
CONDENSED RESULTS 
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The summarised condensed consolidated 
financial results are prepared in accordance 
with the Listings Requirements of the JSE 
Limited (“the JSE Listings Requirements”) for 
summarised reports, and the requirements of 
the Companies Act, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008), 
as amended (“the Companies Act”). The JSE 
Listings Requirements require summarised 
reports to be prepared in accordance with the 
framework concepts and the measurement 
and recognition requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), SAICA’s 
Financial Reporting Guides as issued by 
the Accounting Practices Committee and 
Financial Reporting Pronouncements as 
issued by the Financial Reporting Standards 
Council and to also, as a minimum, contain 
the information required by IAS 34 Interim 
Financial Reporting. The accounting policies 
applied in the preparation of the summarised 
condensed consolidated financial statements 
are consistent with those accounting policies 
applied in the preparation of the previous 
consolidated annual financial statements, 
except for the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases. 
Required by the JSE Listing Requirements, the 
group reposts headline earnings in accordance 
with Circular 1/2019: Headline Earnings as 
issued by SAICA.   

This report was compiled under the 
supervision of Mr H van Eeden CA(SA),  
Chief Financial Officer. 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment decreases are 
mainly due to the disposal of the Starbucks 

business, which stores were all company-
owned, and the impairment of Domino’s 
corporate owned stores given the lower 
profitability. 

The intangible assets decrease is mainly due 
to additional impairments in the Domino’s 
Pizza business, given the lower profitability and 
the disposal of the Starbucks master franchise 
licence. 

Decrease in goodwill against prior year is 
mainly attributable to impairments of goodwill 
in respect of previously purchased Domino’s 
company-owned stores and the impairment  
of the remaining goodwill of The Fish and 
Chips Co, given the disposal of this business. 

Deferred tax assets decreased due to the 
derecognition of deferred tax assets. 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Group current assets, excluding cash and 
cash equivalents, decrease is mainly due 
to improved working capital management, 
specifically inventory management in the 
Luxury Goods Division and impairment 
of stock values. The debtors decrease is 
attributable to the increased provision for 
expected credit losses. 

EQUITY 
There were no changes in authorised and 
stated capital during the financial year. 

BORROWINGS 
In terms of the articles of the memorandum 
of incorporation, the directors may exercise all 
powers of the company to borrow money, as 
they consider appropriate. 

Borrowings as at 29 February 2020 relate to 
the funding received from Domino’s Pizza and 
funding received from certain shareholders, 
Riskowitz Value Fund LP (“RVF”), Eldon Capital 
and Rand Capital in order to execute the 
revised strategy and exit of the food business. 
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CASH FLOW 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
financial year totalled R15 million (2019:  
R142 million). 

During the year the drain on cash utilised to 
fund operational activities was reduced by 
R23 million. Cash required to fund operating 
activities totalled R42 million (2019:  
R65 million). 

Cash utilised in investment activities increased 
to R46 million (2019: R24 million).

CHANGE STATEMENT
The Annual Financial Statements and Full 
Announcement (together the “Audited 
Results”) contain no modifications to the 
reviewed provisional consolidated financial 
results (“Reviewed Results”) which were 
announced on SENS on 7 September 
2020, save for the following reclassification 
adjustments::

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 
FLOWS RECLASSIFICATIONS:
Reclassifications of cash flows, due to the 
adoption of IFRS 16:
•  The change in cash outflow on repayment 

of leases of R9.8 million, classified as 
financing activities, is due to the 
reclassification between the interest and 
capital portion of lease payments. This has 
also impacted the cash flow in respect of 
the disposal of discontinued operation, 
which is classified as cash flow from 
financing activities as well.

• The disposal of discontinued operations, 
classified as both financing activities and 
investing activities, was further amended by 
R8.3 million due to the reclassification 
between lease repayments and leases 
disposed of.

• The clearing of the lease equalisation 
accrual has resulted in a change of  
R1.1 million in cash utilised in operating 
activities.

Reclassification between continuing and 
discontinued operations
•  The change in cash flow from investing 

activities, the acquisition of property, plant 
and equipment, is due to the reclassification 
of an outflow to the value of R0.6 million 
from continuing to discontinued operations.

HEADLINE LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO  
ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS
•  The headline loss increased by  

R0.3 million due to the reclassification 
of a loss on disposal of intangibles and 
the reclassification of the loss on the 
cancellation of leases to Loss on sale  
of business.

•  The headline loss per share remained  
on 9.4 cents before and after the change 
above.

Besides the impact on headline loss, the above 
had no impact on the current or previously 
reported profitability, total assets, total 
liabilities, equity or cash and cash equivalents 
at either the beginning or the end of the 
financial year.

No other balances or amounts were affected 
by this reclassification. Furthermore, it has 
not necessitated any reclassification or 
restatement in respect of financial statements 
for previous years. 

NOTES TO THE SUMMARISED CONDENSED 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 29 February 2020
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APPLICATION FORM FOR ELECTRONIC 
PARTICIPATION AT THE ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING
LUXE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Formerly Taste Holdings Limited) 
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 2000/002239/06)
Share code: LUX   ISIN: ZAE000286035
(“Luxe” or “the company”)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (22 October 2020) (“AGM’)
Capitalised terms which are not defined herein shall bear the meanings assigned in the notice of annual general meeting (the 
“AGM Notice”) to which this form is attached and forms part. 
Instructions
Shareholders or their proxies, have the right, as provided for in the Company’s memorandum of incorporation and the Companies 
Act, to participate in the AGM by way of electronic communication. 
Shareholders or their duly appointed proxies who wish to participate in the AGM must complete this application form and email 
it (together with the relevant supporting documents referred to below) to the Company’s Transfer Secretaries at proxy@
computershare.co.za and to the Company at craig.laidlaw@computershare.co.za as soon as possible, but in any event by no later 
than 14:00, 20 October 2020. 
Upon receiving a completed Electronic Participation Application Form, the Company’s Transfer Secretaries will follow a 
verification process to verify each applicant’s entitlement to participate in and/or vote at the AGM. The Company’s Transfer 
Secretaries will provide the Company with the email address of each verified shareholder or their duly appointed proxy (each, “a 
Participant”) to enable the Company to forward the Participant a Microsoft Teams meeting invitation required to access the AGM. 
Luxe will send each Participant a Microsoft Teams meeting invitation with a link to “Join the Microsoft Teams Meeting” on  
22 October 2020 to enable Participants to link up and participate electronically in the AGM. This link will be sent to the email 
address nominated by the Participant in the table below. 
Please note
The electronic platform to be utilised for the AGM does not provide for electronic voting during the meeting. Accordingly, 
shareholders are strongly encouraged to submit votes by proxy in advance of the AGM, by completing the Form of Proxy (found 
at page 35) and lodging the completed proxy form together with this Electronic Participation Application Form with the 
Company’s Transfer Secretaries. 
Participants who indicate in this form that they wish to vote during the electronic meeting, will be contacted by the Company’s 
Transfer Secretaries to make the necessary arrangements. 
Participants will be liable for their own network charges in relation to electronic participation in and/or voting at the AGM. Any 
such charges will not be for the account of the Company’s Transfer Secretaries or Luxe who will also not be held accountable in 
the case of loss of network connectivity or other network failure due to insufficient airtime, internet connectivity, internet 
bandwidth and/or power outages which prevents any such Particpant from participating in and/or voting at the AGM.
By signing this application form, the Participant indemnifies and holds the Company harmless against any loss, injury, damage, 
penalty or claim arising in any way from the use of the telecommunication lines to participate in the AGM or any interruption in 
the ability of the Participant to participate in the AGM via electronic communication, whether or not the problem is caused by 
any act or omission on the part of the Participant or anyone else, including without limitation the Company and its employees.

Full name of shareholder:
Identity or registration number of shareholder:
Full name of authorised representative (if applicable):
Identity number of authorised representative:
Email address:
*  Note: this email address will be used by the Company to share the 

Microsoft Teams meeting invitation required to access the AGM 
electronically 

Cell phone number:
Telephone number, including dialling codes:
*  Note: The electronic platform to be utilised for the AGM does not provide for electronic voting during the meeting. 

Accordingly, shareholders are strongly encouraged to submit votes by proxy in advance of the AGM, by completing the 
proxy form found at page 35.

Indicate (by marking with an ‘X’) whether:

a)  votes will be submitted by proxy (in which case, please enclose the duly completed proxy form with this form); 
or

b)  the Participant wishes to exercise votes during the AGM. If this option is selected, the Company’s Transfer 
Secretaries will contact you to make the necessary arrangements.

By signing this application form, I consent to the processing of my personal information above for the purpose of 
participating in Luxe’s AGM.

Signature

Signed at  on  2020

Annexure D
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APPLICATION FORM FOR ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION 
AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED

Documents required to be attached to this application form

1.  In order to exercise their voting rights at the AGM, shareholders who choose to participate electronically 
may appoint a proxy, which proxy may participate in the AGM, provided that a duly completed proxy form 
has been submitted in accordance with the instructions on that form, and as envisaged in the notice of 
the AGM, a copy of which is annexed to this notice as Annexure E.

2.  Documentary evidence establishing the authority of the named person, including any person acting in a 
representative capacity, who is to participate in the AGM, must be attached to this application.

3.  A certified copy of the valid identity document/passport/drivers licence of the person attending the AGM 
by electronic participation, including any person acting in a representative capacity, must be attached to 
this application.

Applications to participate by electronic communication will only be considered if this application form is 
completed in full, signed by the shareholder, its proxy or representative, and delivered as detailed above. The 
Company may in its sole discretion accept any incomplete application forms.
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FORM OF PROXY

LUXE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Formerly Taste Holdings Limited) 
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 2000/002239/06)
Share code: LUX   ISIN: ZAE000286035
(“Luxe” or “the company”)

For use only by:
• holders of certificated ordinary shares in the company; or
•  holders of dematerialised ordinary shares in the company (“dematerialised shareholders”) held through a Central 

Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker and who have selected “own-name” registration,

at the annual general meeting of shareholders of the company to be held held entirely via a remote interactive electronic 
platform Microsoft Teams at 14:00 on Thursday, 22 October 2020 (“AGM”). 

Dematerialised shareholders holding shares in the company other than with “own-name” registration, who wish to attend 
the AGM must inform their CSDP or broker of their intention to attend the AGM and request their CSDP or broker to issue 
them with the relevant letter of representation to attend the AGM themselves or by proxy and vote. If they do not wish to 
attend the AGM by themselves or by proxy, they must provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms 
of the relevant custody agreement entered into between them and the CSDP or broker. These shareholders must not use 
this form of proxy.
Each shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be a shareholder of the company) to participate 
and vote in place of that shareholder at the AGM. 

I/We (full name/s in block letters)

of (address)

Telephone work: (       )                                                                    Telephone home:  (       )   

Cell phone number:                                                                         Email address:

being the registered holder of ordinary shares in the company, hereby appoint (see note)

1. or failing him/her

2. or failing him/her,
3. the chairperson of the AGM,
as my/our proxy  to attend, speak or vote on my/our behalf at the AGM convened to consider and, if deemed fit, passing, with or 
without modification, the resolutions to be proposed thereat and at each adjournment or postponement thereof, and to vote 
for and/or against such resolutions, and/or to abstain from voting for and/or against the resolutions, in respect of the shares in 
the issued share capital of the company registered in my/our name in accordance with the following instructions:

For Against Abstain
Ordinary resolution 1 To re-elect Ms Zukie Siyotula as an independent non-

executive director of the company
Ordinary resolution 2.1 To re-appoint Mr Grant Pattison as a member and 

chairperson of the audit and risk committee of the 
company

Ordinary resolution 2.2 To re-appoint Ms Zukie Siyotula as a member of the audit 
and risk committee of the company

Ordinary resolution 2.3 To re-appoint Mr Leo Chou as a member of the audit and 
risk committee of the company

Ordinary resolution 3 Re-appointment of BDO South Africa Incorporated as 
auditors of the company

Ordinary resolution 4 Control of authorised but unissued ordinary shares
Ordinary resolution 5 Authority to issue shares for cash
Ordinary resolution 6.1 Advisory endorsement of the remuneration policy
Ordinary resolution 6.2 Advisory endorsement of the implementation report on 

the remuneration policy
Ordinary resolution 7 Signing authority
Special resolution 1 Approval of non-executive directors’ remuneration
Special resolution 2 General authority to repurchase shares
Special resolution 3 Financial assistance to related and interrelated companies

Please indicate your voting instruction by inserting the number of shares (or a X should you wish to vote all of your shares) 
in the space provided. If no directions are given, the holder of the proxy will be entitled to vote or abstain from voting as 
that proxy deems fit. This proxy shall be valid only for the AGM of shareholders of the company to be held on Thursday,  
22 October 2020 at 14:00 am and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Signature

Signed at  on  2020

Assisted by (where applicable) 

Please read the notes on the reverse side hereof.

Annexure E
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NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROXY
1.  Summary of rights contained in Section 58 of the Companies Act, (Act 

No. 71 of 2008), as amended (“Companies Act”)
 In terms of Section 58 of the Companies Act:
 •  a shareholder may, at any time and following the provisions of 

Section 58 of the Companies Act, appoint any individual (including 
an individual who is not a shareholder) as a proxy to participate in, 
and speak and vote at, a shareholders’ meeting on behalf of such 
shareholder;

 •  a proxy appointment must be in writing, dated and signed by the 
shareholder;

 •  except to the extent that the memorandum of incorporation of a 
company provides otherwise, a shareholder of that company may 
appoint two or more persons concurrently as proxies, and may 
appoint more than one proxy to exercise voting rights attached to 
the different securities held by the shareholder;

 •  except to the extent that the memorandum of incorporation of 
the company provides otherwise, a proxy may delegate her or his 
authority to act on behalf of a shareholder to another person, subject 
to any restriction set out in the instrument appointing such proxy;

 •  except to the extent that the memorandum of incorporation of the 
company provides otherwise, a copy of the instrument appointing 
a proxy must be delivered to the company, or any other person on 
behalf of the company, before the proxy exercises any rights of the 
shareholder at a shareholders’ meeting;

 •  irrespective of the form of the instrument used to appoint a proxy, 
the appointment of a proxy is suspended at any time and to the 
extent that the relevant shareholder chooses to act directly and 
in person in the exercise of any of such shareholder’s rights as a 
shareholder;

 •  irrespective of the form of the instrument used to appoint a proxy, 
any appointment by a shareholder of a proxy is revocable, unless the 
form of the instrument used to appoint such proxy states otherwise;

 •  if an appointment of a proxy is revocable, a shareholder may revoke 
the proxy appointment by: (i) cancelling it in writing, or making a 
later inconsistent appointment of a proxy and (ii) delivering a copy of 
the revocation instrument to the proxy and to the company;

 •  the revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete 
and final cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of 
the shareholder as of the later of the date (i) stated in a revocation 
instrument, if any; or (ii) upon which the revocation instrument is 
delivered to the proxy and the relevant company as required in 
Section 58(4)(c)(ii) of the Companies Act;

 •  if the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies has been delivered to 
the relevant company, as long as that appointment remains in effect, 
any notice that is required by the Companies Act or the relevant 
company’s memorandum of incorporation to be delivered by such 
company to the shareholder must be delivered by such company 
to the shareholder or the proxy or proxies, if the shareholder has in 
writing directed the relevant company to do so and has paid any 
reasonable fee charged by the company for doing so;

 •  a proxy appointed by a shareholder is entitled to exercise, or 
abstain from exercising, any voting right of such shareholder 
without direction, except to the extent that the relevant company’s 
memorandum of incorporation, or the instrument appointing the 
proxy, provides otherwise (see note 5);

 •  if a company issues an invitation to shareholders to one or more 
persons named by such company as a proxy, or supplies a form of 
instrument for appointing a proxy:

  –  such invitation must be sent to every shareholder who is entitled 
to receive notice of the meeting at which the proxy is intended to 
be exercised;

  –  the invitation or form of proxy must bear a reasonably prominent 
summary of the rights established by Section 58 of the Companies 
Act, contain adequate space to enable a shareholder to write 
in the name, and if so desired an alternative name, of a proxy 
chosen by the shareholder and provide adequate space for the 
shareholder to indicate whether the appointed proxy is to vote in 
favour of or against any resolution or resolutions to be put at the 
meeting, or abstain from voting;

  –  the company must not require that the proxy appointment be 
made irrevocable; and

  –  the proxy appointment remains valid only until the end of the 
relevant meeting at which it was intended to be used, unless 
revoked as contemplated in Section 58(5) of the Companies Act.

2.  The form of proxy must only be used by shareholders who hold 
shares in certificated form or who are recorded on the sub-register in 
electronic form in “own name”.

3.  All other beneficial owners who hold dematerialised shares through a 
CSDP or broker and wish to attend the annual general meeting must 
provide the CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of 
the relevant custody agreement entered into between them and the 
CSDP or broker.

4.  A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the annual general 
meeting may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternate 
proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the space provided, with or 
without deleting “the chairperson of the AGM”. The person whose name 
stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at the annual 
general meeting will be entitled to act as a proxy to the exclusion of 
such proxy (ies) whose names follow.

5.  A shareholder is entitled to one vote on a show of hands and, on a 
poll, one vote in respect of each ordinary share held. A shareholder’s 
instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of an “X” 
in the appropriate space provided. If an “X” has been inserted in one of 
the blocks to a particular resolution, it will indicate the voting of all the 
shares held by the shareholder concerned. Failure to comply with this 
will be deemed to authorise the proxy to vote or to abstain from voting 
at the annual general meeting as he/she deems fit in respect of all the 
shareholder’s votes exercisable thereat. A shareholder or the proxy is 
not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by the shareholder or by the 
proxy, but the total of the votes cast and in respect of which abstention 
is recorded may not exceed the total of the votes exercisable by the 
shareholder or the proxy.

6.  A vote given in terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid in relation 
to the annual general meeting, notwithstanding the death, insanity or 
other legal disability of the person granting it, or the revocation of the 
proxy, or the transfer of the shares in respect of which the proxy is given, 
unless notice as to any of the aforementioned matters shall have been 
received by the company’s Transfer Secretaries, Computershare Investor 
Services Proprietary Limited (“transfer secretaries”).

7.  If a shareholder does not indicate on this form of proxy that his/her 
proxy is to vote in favour of or against any resolution or to abstain 
from voting, or gives contradictory instructions, or should any further 
resolution(s) or any amendment(s) which may properly be put before 
the annual general meeting be proposed, such proxy shall be entitled 
to vote as he/she thinks fit.

8.  A shareholder’s authorisation to the proxy including the chairperson of 
the annual general meeting, to vote on such shareholder’s behalf, shall 
be deemed to include the authority to vote on procedural matters at 
the annual general meeting.

9.  The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the 
relevant shareholder from attending the annual general meeting and 
speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy 
appointed in terms hereof.

10.  Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing 
the form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached to this 
form of proxy, unless previously recorded by the transfer secretaries or is 
waived by the chairperson of the annual general meeting.

11.  A minor or any other person under legal incapacity must be assisted 
by his/her parent or guardian, as applicable, unless the relevant 
documents establishing his/her capacity are produced or have been 
registered by the transfer secretaries.

12. Where there are joint holders of shares:
 • any one holder may sign the form of proxy;
 •  the vote(s) of the senior shareholders (for that purpose seniority will 

be determined by the order in which the names of shareholder 
appear in the company’s register of ordinary shareholders) who 
tender a vote (whether in person or by proxy) will be accepted to the 
exclusion of the vote(s) of the other joint shareholder(s).

13.  The Board requests that completed forms of proxy are received at the 
office of the company’s transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor 
Services Proprietary Limited, Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann Avenue, 
Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2001 (Private Bag x9000,  Saxonwold, 2132), 
or via email to proxy@computershare.co.za by 14:00. 20 October 2020. 
Any forms of proxy not lodged by this time may still be lodged by email 
to proxy@computershare.co.za and to craig.laidlaw@computershare.
co.za prior to the commencement of the meeting.

14.  Deletion of any printed matter and the completion of any blank space 
need not be signed or initialled. Any alteration or correction must be 
signed and not merely initialled.

15.  The proxy appointment remains valid only for the annual general 
meeting at which it is intended to be used and any adjournment or 
postponement thereof, subject to paragraph 1 above

. Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196
 Postal deliveries to:
  Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited  

PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107;
  to be received by no later than 14h00 on Tuesday, 20 October 2020. 

Thereafter, proxy forms may be delivered to the chairperson of the 
annual general meeting, at the annual general meeting, before voting 
on a particular resolution commences or before any adjournment of 
the annual general meeting which date, if necessary, will be notified 
on the Stock Exchange News Service of the JSE Limited) or may be 
handed to the chairperson of the annual general meeting immediately 
before the appointed proxy exercises any of the shareholder’s votes at 
the annual general meeting.

14.  A deletion of any printed matter and the completion of any blank 
space need not be signed or initialled. Any alteration or correction must 
be signed and not merely initialled.

15.  The proxy appointment remains valid only for the annual general 
meeting at which it is intended to be used and any adjournment or 
postponement thereof, subject to paragraph 1 above.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LUXE HOLDINGS LIMITED 
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DJ Crosson (CEO), H van Eeden (CFO)
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These results and an overview of LUXE are available at www.luxeholdings.co.za
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